
  
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE OF THE TOWN OF 
PINETOP-LAKESIDE, ARIZONA, HELD ON JANUARY 20, 2016 IN THE TRAINING ROOM / ROOM 16.  
Vice Chairman Girardi called the meeting to order 9:02 at a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:   Present   Absent         Present       Absent 
 
Chairman Joe Petersen                             X           Jeffrey McKee          X   
Vice Chair Rica Girardi                 X     Gil Armijo                 X                      
Lynn Krigbaum                   X     Kathy Dahnk             X    
Vacant - Sunrise                  Steve Berman          X              
Vice Mayor Place        X                              Diane Tilton          X   
Councilmember Wessel       X          
  
STAFF PRESENT:  Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk; Barbara Ashley, Finance Director; Matthew Williams, 
Community Services Manager and Evelyn Racette, Town Manager.  
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Sam John, Larry John Wright and Associates; Sharon Villegas, PepperTree Marketing; Crystal 
O’Donnell, Pinetop-Lakeside Chamber of Commerce and Sheryl Smith.  
 
ITEM NO. 2, CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  
  
Committeemember Krigbaum said the Winter Watershed Conference would be held on January 27, 28 and 29, 
2016 at the X-Diamond Ranch, and said she would be speaking at the conference.   
 
Vice Chairman Girardi said the ADOT / PARA Study is on the agenda for the Town Council Meeting on Thursday, 
January 21, 2016, and said she would like to know what this entails.  Ms. Racette said the Town Council would 
be prioritizing the five proposed projects, and said for the Council to advise what projects they would like to 
find funding for and apply for grants in the future.  She said all of the projects are three to five years out to 
receive funding.  Councilmember Wessel said there is no funding slated for these projects.  Vice Chairman 
Girardi said there is a misconception the projects are going to be funded by the Town or by ADOT.   
 
Councilmember Wessel said she would like to see a pamphlet showing one hundred things to do in Pinetop-
Lakeside, and said she had seen this done is other communities.  Crystal O’Donnell said there is a pamphlet 
showing two hundred and two things to do in the White Mountains.  She said it is printed on newspaper type 
material, and said the Pinetop-Lakeside Chamber advertises the pamphlet each year, and said it is usually 
available in the spring.   
 
ITEM NO. 3, CONSENT AGENDA MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD DECEMBER 16, 2015: 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD 
DECEMBER 16, 2015.  COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM NO. 4, REPORT FROM THE BUDGET SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION 
COMMITTEE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-2015: 
 
Barbara Ashley said she received the numbers last night, and said a full report would be emailed out to staff 
and the Committee in the afternoon.  She said last month there were some errors that would be adjusted this 
month, and said it had been adjusted in the retail sales tax revenues.  She said tourism and advertising was in 
the positive with $36,000.00 to date through December 2015.  She said year to date retail is still up by five 
percent.  Vice Chairman Girardi said the hotel tax in November 2015 was up one percent over November 
2014, and said October 2015 was also good.  She said it was the same for the restaurants.   
 
ITEM NO. 5, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING ADVERTISING AND PUBLIC RELATIONS 
PRESENTATIONS FROM SHARON VILLEGAS, PEPPERTREE MARKETING AND SAM JOHN, LARRY JOHN WRIGHT 
ADVERTISING: 
 
Vice Chairman Girardi said each company would have twenty minutes to present their proposals for the 
Advertising and Public Relations contract, and said there would be an question and answer session to follow 
each presentation.  Sharon Villegas, PepperTree Marketing presented first and Sam John, Larry John Wright 
Advertising, presented second.  
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM MOVED TO RECOMMENDED LARRY JOHN WRIGHT ADVERTISING TO THE 
TOWN COUNCIL FOR A THREE YEAR CONTRACT FOR ADVERTISING AND PUBLIC RELATIONS WITH THE TOWN 
OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE.  COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK 
SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED 6-1 WITH COMMITTEEMEMBER MC KEE ABSTAINING. 
 
Committeemember Krigbaum said she is impressed with the results Mr. John has had since Larry John Wright 
had been the advertising company for the Committee, and said the advertising had come a long way since she 
had been attending meetings of the Committee.  Committeemember Dahnk said she agrees, and said the 
advertising is on the correct track.  Ms. O’Donnell said she is not a voting member of the Committee, but said 
she supports Mr. John and Larry John Wright Advertising. 
 
ITEM NO. 6, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING REQUESTS FOR FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $500.00 FOR PRINTING 10,000 PROGRAMS FOR THE WHITE MOUNTAIN NATURE CENTER DISCOVERY 
SERIES: 
 
Vice Chairman Girardi said the Nature Center is requesting funds for the printing of the Discovery Series 
Programs.  Committeemember Krigbaum said ten thousand programs were printed last year.  She said at least 
three thousand of the programs would be given out at the Game and Fish Expo in Phoenix in April 2016.  She 
said the programs would also be distributed at hotels, motels and restaurants.  She said every Saturday would 
hold a program except for two Saturdays, and said one is when the Women’s Club holds their Junque Hunt at 
the Nature Center and said the other Saturday would be when Happy Tails is at The Orchard.  She said the 
programs begin the end of May 2016 and continue through September 17, 2016.  Vice Chairman Girardi asked 
for the Town logo and visitpinetoplakeside.com to be included on the Discovery Series programs.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN MOVED TO FUND $500.00 FOR PRINTING TEN THOUSAND PROGRAMS FOR 
THE WHITE MOUNTAIN NATURE CENTER DISCOVER SERVIES WITH THE ADDITION OF THE PINETOP-
LAKESIDE TOWN LOGO AND THE VISITPINETOPLAKESIDE.COM WEBSITE ADDRESS ON THE PROGRAMS.  
COMMITTEEMEMBER TILTON SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK AND COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM ABSTAINING DUE TO CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST. 
 
ITEM NO. 7, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING REQUESTS FOR FUND UP TO $600.00 TO 
ATTEND THE ARIZONA GAME AND FISH OUTDOOR EXPO APRIL 2 & 3, 2016: 
 
Ms. Racette said she and Town staff would attend the Outdoor Expo.  She said she was the only staff member 
in attendance for the first day, and said it was very busy and would need more staff to attend.  
Committeemember Tilton said she would attend, and said she would be promoting the White Mountains and 
fishing.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK MOVED TO FUND UP TO $600.00 TO ATTEND THE ARIZONA GAME AND FISH 
OUTDOOR EXPO APRIL 2 & 3, 2016 IN PHOENIX.  COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM SECONDED THE MOTION 
AND THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH COMMITTEEMEMBER TILTON ABSTAINING DUE TO 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. 
 
ITEM NO. 8, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING UPDATE ON THE IMS MANAGEMENT GROUP, 
VISITPINETOPLAKESIDE.COM WEBSITE: 
 
Vice Chairman Girardi said Ms. Akins had emailed a link to the Committee to review the layout and the look of 
the website, and said she is not concerned with the content at this time just the layout.  She asked the 
Committee to send their thoughts and ideas to Ms. Akins after reviewing the website.  She said a concern of 
hers is the “Moving to Pinetop” listed on the website.  She asked for the Committeemembers to take fifteen 
minutes of their time to review the layout of the website, the “Moving to Pinetop” portion of the site and send 
their thoughts and ideas to Ms. Akins.   
 
ITEM NO. 9, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING UPDATE AND INFORMATION BY SAM 
JOHN OF LARRY JOHN WRIGHT ADVERTISING: 
 
Sam John said OOTV for December 2015 increased by twenty thousand views from December 2014.  He said 
the organic search would grow with the new website.  He said the Facebook likes would be at three thousand 
by the end of January 2016.  He said the overall website visitors had increased, and said the overall OOTV 
impressions were lower but the full video views had increased.  He said the clicks for OOIA were just over 
three thousand.  A discussion ensued regarding TripAdvisor, and Mr. John said money would have to be spent 
on TripAdvisor in order for the Committee to sponsor the page.  He said TripAdvisor has sponsorship packages.  
He said there are two packages, and said one is for $4,000.00 and the other is $4,500.00, and said for the 
Committee to consider if they wanted to advertise on TripAdvisor.    
 
ITEM NO. 10, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE PINETOP-LAKESIDE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ON 
FESTIVALS, ACTIVITES, STATISTICS, TRACKING AND TOURISM: 
 
Crystal O’Donnell said the Arizona Rural Policy Forum would be held in Pinetop-Lakeside August 10, 11 and 12, 
2016.  She said three hundred people would attend.  She said there is a picture of the Harley Group in the Hog 
Magazine, and said the picture was taken at the Orchard at Charlie Clarks. She said it is the third time that 
Pinetop-Lakeside had appeared in the Hog Magazine.  She said the Drink Local Campaign would launch March 



1, 2016 and end April 30, 2016.  She said the Chamber is holding a Biggest Loser Community Challenge, and 
said the cost is one hundred dollars for a team of four people.  She said registration is available on line.  She 
said the Chamber of Commerce board retreat would be held on January 27, 2016 from 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
at El Rancho.  She said the regular board meeting would follow from 5:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. at El Rancho.  She 
said on Tuesday, January 26, 2016 would be Flick with the Chicks at the Pinetop theatre, and said the movie 
would be Dirty Grandpa.  She said Sno Glo would be held on Friday, February 19, 2016 at Mountain Meadow 
Park.   
 
ITEM NO. 11, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT: 
 
Ms. Racette introduced Mathew Williams, and said he is the Community Services Manager.  Ms. Racette said 
he would be heading up recreation, meeting with MYAC and working with non-profit groups.  Matthew 
Williams said he would be revamping the Easter Egg Hunt.  He said he plans to have movies in the park from 
Memorial Day Weekend until September.  He said they would be shown at Mountain Meadow Recreation 
Park.  He said he is looking into having a Fourth of July event in Pinetop-Lakeside.  He said he would like to 
create more winter events.  A discussion ensued regarding ski joring through Town.  Mr. Williams said he had 
discussed ski joring with members of the Sheriff’s Posse, and said they would be discussing the event at the 
meeting in February 2016.  He said ice castles and ski lessons for the children in the community are also being 
looked into.   
 
ITEM NO 12, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE ARIZONA GAME AND FISH DEPARTMENT: 
 
Committeemember Tilton said she would be promoting fishing in the White Mountains at the Outdoor Expo.  
She said Arizona would be receiving tiger trout for the first time in four lakes in the White Mountains, and said 
the lakes would be Becker Lake, Canero Lake, Willow Lake and Woods Canyon Lake.  She said tiger trout are a 
sterile hybrid of rainbow and brown trout.  She said the tiger trout would be in the lakes late April 2016 or 
early May 2016.  She said she hopes to do a fishing tournament at Woodland Lake in May 2016, and said it 
would be a free fishing day for kids.  Mr. Williams said he would help Committeemember Tilton with this 
event.  She said February 6, 2016 the Forest Service is holding an Eagle Workshop, and said the group would 
go to Rainbow Lake to view the eagles.  She said she is working on a website called WhiteMountain 
Fishing.com.   
 
ITEM NO. 13, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING TOURISM ACTIVITIES ON TRIBAL LANDS: 
 
Ms. Racette said Sunrise is doing great this year.  She said she is on the Sunrise Board.  She said the zip lines 
poles and platforms are being installed, and said it would be a six line zip line.  She said the full tour would take 
approximately two hours.  She said Sunrise plans to have the zip line completed in March 2016, and said the 
zip line would be open in May 2016.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
The meeting adjourned at 11:55 a.m.    
       Advertising and Promotion Committee 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
        Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk 
 
 
 


